


was turned down because of her age. She was fifty-two. That was nothing
more than a challenge to the doughty Mrs. Steed. She arranged to have
herself specifically requested by an overseas commanding officer. So she
went to Dijon, France, as a canteen worker and became known as “Mother”
Steed by thousands of soldiers serving in France. And small wonder: she
loved them, wrote for them, counseled them and fed them well. When the
G.1 rations became mundane, “Mother” Steed secured steaks and chops
for “her boys.” She found a local butcher in Dijon who wanted those
American doughnuts very much. She simply made arrangements to furnish
him doughnuts in return for the steaks and chops. So “Mother” Steed
became something of an angel as well as “Mother” to her boys.

She lost the sight of one eye while serving in France. It became infected
as she went into battle areas setting up canteens.

After the war, she continued to work harder than ever for the soldiers.
She was Service Chairman of the Woman'’s Overseas Service League, was
instrumental in providing the War Veteran’s Home at 2626 Pennsylvania
Avenue in the District and, typically, operated “Mother Steed’s Dugout”
for a while at 11th Street and New York Avenue.

She received many decorations and citations including the meritorious
service award from President Truman. Some of her awards can be seen at
the National Red Cross Headquarters in Washington. Stories were written
about her, poems written to her and thousands and thousands of letters
came to her from “her boys” for many years after the war.

When World War II came along, “Mother” Steed went into her act. She
founded and organized the area’s most popular canteen — the Servicemen’s
Club No. 1 at Ninth Street and Pennsylvania Avenue — at the age of
seventy-eight! There, she was hostess to many of the boys whose fathers
she had served in France during the first World War.

“Mother” Steed lived with her husband, Joshua, in a simple two-story
home perched on the crest of a hill in a grove of trees at what is now 5321
Fairfax Drive. It was in the vicinity of what was then Veitch Station. They
had no children. She was born Emma Christian Baum of a family that
settled in Georgetown in 1775.

She died on December 17, 1949 at the age of eighty-five. She was totally
blind. County records show that Joshua conveyed the house and property
on Fairfax Drive as “Joshua N. Steed, widower” on September 21, 1950.

Many asoldier took the memory and vision of the kindly “Mother” Steed
to his grave.

In the year 1917, the Chapter met a few times at St. George’s Parish Hall
at Farlee. Members of a suffrage association opened their club rooms near
the Court House for use by the new Red Cross Chapter for a few meetings.
Then Mr. and Mrs. Arthur Porter, organizers and charter members of the
Chapter, permitted the use of aroom as headquarters in their home at 1050

N. Irving Street.
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paid $60 a month. The Wilson Boulevard address is now owned and
occupied by the Square Deal Tuxedo Rentals.

The next year, 1938, the Chapter was housed in a one-story building at
2517 Wilson Boulevard. A visit to that address will bring one to Little Dell’'s
Restaurant (off and on sales) where delicious Italian food is served and the
proprietor is proud of it. ’

In 1939-1940 it was found necessary to acquire larger quarters and the
Chapter moved to the upper floor of a small, box house at 1640 N. 16th
Street. It was on the corner of 16th Street and Court House Road. The
house has been demolished and the address has disappeared. On the spot
today is Lum’s Restaurant with a Court House Road address.

The Chapter Headquarters next moved to 1207 N. Highland Street in
1941. It was a small house just back of the old Yeatman’s Hardware Store,
which was the corner of N. Highland Street and Wilson Boulevard. The
place where the house once stood has become a small parking space for
office employees. In that year we hired our first full-time employee,
Carolyn Moran, as our second Executive Director. She remained with the
Chapter until 1947 and is presently with the American Red Cross National
Headquarters in Washington. She wrote a beautiful account of her
stewardship with the Arlington Chapter when she left. A

In 1942 the Chapter moved into what was then thought to be spacious
quarters at 4224 Wilson Boulevard. It was the home of a well-known
Arlington citizen, Dr. Williamson Crothers Welburn. In 1912 Dr. Welburn
bought an old farm at Glebe Road and Georgetown Road (now Wilson
Boulevard) and built his home. At one time, he had an office, pharmacy,
ice cream parlor, railway waiting station and post office in a store on the
corner of Fairfax Drive and Ballston Avenue (now N. Stuart Street). His
wife made ice cream and syrups for the ice cream parlor and served as
Postmistress of Ballston. The homeplace on Wilson Boulevard was right
in the middle of Ballston, which was first called Birch’s Crossroads and
later, Ball's Crossroads, and was the County’s earliest hamlet. Mrs. Welburn
was interested in our Red Cross Chapter and served on the Board of
Directors from 1939 through 1941.

Dr. Welburn was the founder of the Arlington County Medical Society
and its first president. The Society gives an annual “Welburn Award” for
outstanding contributions in medicine or related fields. The good doctor
was also a co-founder of the medical staff of Arlington Hospital. He served
as Medical Examiner of Arlington County for 30 years. He called himself a
“horse and buggy” doctor in the early years of his practice, but, he was one
of the best known and most highly regarded physicians in the history of the
County. He died in 1956 at the ripe age of eighty-nine “still practicing
medicine.”

When the Welburns moved to another home at 3408 N. Glebe Road,
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disaster victims, the mentally retarded, visually handicapped, hospital
patients, those requiring blood, and the elderly in need of care. They have
also given instructions in first aid, home nursing, mother and baby care,
swimming, life saving and on and on.

Sixty years of service! What else could one possibly ask of an organization?
Surely we must be thankful that the Red Cross is present, right now, in our
community where we can reach out and actually touch it — or more aptly
put — where it can reach out and touch us.

Thus, we all can be confident that looking back at sixty years confirms
the future.
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